Hozs
‘ ‘ } AVERLEY ROAD SHOPS
EAST MALVERN

INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared by Bryce Raworth Pty Lid in asscciaton with Di Foster, historian. in
order to investigate the significance of the group of shops centred on ihat part of Waverley Road
immediately east of Darling Road, and o determine the appropriateness of urban conservaucn controls

for the precinct.
No buildings in this area were graded or assessed in the Ciry of Malvern Heritage Siudy, 1992. None

. 1
are presentiy listed on the Victorian Heritage Register or the Register of the Natonal Estate. nor are

any classified by the National Trust.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

This report finds that the area is of regional significance as a substantally intact interwar commercial
centre. It is recommended that the area be protected as an Urban Conservation Area under the

Stonningion Planning Scheme and be nominated to the Register of the National Estate.

EXTENT OF PROPOSED URBAN CONSERVATION AREA

The propased Urban Conservation Area cdmprises the following: odd numbers, 319-363A Waverley

Road and even numbers 240-268 Waverley Road, East Malvern.



HISTORY

The first sales of Crown Land in the area that was to become the City of Malvern, took place on e 10
June 1840. The area had been surveyed and divided into large allomments suitable for market gardens and
farms. Pastoralists had previously moved into the area, but the first sales of lard in the north west of

the distric, initiated the beginnings of permansnt settlement.

Commercial Road, High Strest and other main roads that wers already established in the west, were
axtended east. Malvern Road continued east as far as Gardiners Creek, the parish boundary. Waverley
Road, known as Scotchman’s Cresk Road untl 1872, and Darling Road, originally known as

Rutherford’s Road, were creawed in 1834.

As the Crown allotments sold, purchasers moved 2ast and in 1836 Robert Scott purchased lot 133 at
the north west comer of Waverley Road and Darling Road. Two years later, allomment 144, on the south

east corner of Waveriey Road and Darling Road, was purchased by James Quirk.

Scott’s 11 acre allotment was scld to Albert Weston and then in 1859 to William Payne,l who also
owrned the adjacent allotments. In 1889, a subdivision and sale of the Triple Railway Station Estate by
auctionesrs Munro and Baillieu, created Grace Stréer, later known as Beech Street. The east end of
Manning Road and the east side of Oak Grove, previously created with the subdivision of the Emo
Estate, were included in the subdivision and the area was divided into allotments suitable for housing.
Waverley Road east of Oak Grove, and Darling Road, were divided into sites suitable for commercial

. . . y 4
1:>an;>-oses.3 The Estate was advertised as having ‘Business, Mansion and Villa sites.

The 1880s boom years were coming to an end however, and with the severe economic depression of the
1890s, the partrership of Dorald Munro and William Baitlieu was dissolved,” along with numerous
companies, building societies and banks that were placed in liquidation. The severe downturn in the
economy meant several 1arge. allotnents remained as vacant land, including it would seem, the

ambitously planned Triple Railway Station Estate.

* Meanwhile, Quirk's 12 acre allomnent on the south side of Waverley Road, remained as undeveloped

o 6
land and was brought under the Transfer of Land Act by Elizabeth Quirk in 1895. The allotment was

t Rob Bower, ‘Malvern 1840-1989, A history of the subdivision' , pian 9. unpublished manusczipt,
Malvern Archives. .
Rob Bower, ‘Malvem 1840-1989, A history of the subdivision' , vol. 1, Roads, plan 9. unpublished
manuscript, Malvern Archives.

28}

3 Triple Railway Station Estate, Gien Iris, subdivision and sale notice, undated. c.1889. State Library
of Victoria Collection. .

4 Ibid.

5 Cannon, p.i28-9

8 Bower, plan 10.
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owned by Quirk’s estate in 1901 and by 1510 Ceorge Taylor and Henry Siokes bad purchased the jand.”
A subdivision 10 the south had created Fischer Strezt and Bismarck Stezt in 1888. Taylor and Stokes®
owned lot 14t in 1913° when Fischer Street and Bismarck Sireet were extended 0 Waveriey Road. wit
the subdivision of the Tramway Terminus Estz.? The First World War quickly changed these German

names (o the present-day Fisher and Hughes Sisats,

Although the subdivision coincided with the extension of the tramline down Waverley Road w ihz
terminus at Darling Road, a downtwm in building activity accompanied the War years. By 1918 only

two shops bad been built in Waverley Road.*
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Mustration | Subdivizion MNotice.
Source: Malvern Archives.

7 Shire of Malvern Rate Book, East Ward, 1910. no.5271.

g Ibid. 1913-14.

9 Lodged plan 6201, Fischer Street and Bismarck Streeg, 9.9.1913. Bower vol. L. p.79

10 East Malvemn Tramway Terminus Estate, sale natice and subdivision, undated Alway Collection.
Malvern Archives.

11 Sands and McDougail Directory, 1918,



Following the War, the improved economy resuited in an increase in building acivity in the
surrounding sweets including Manning Road, Beech Street and Oak Grove and east of Darling Road in
Otive and Hilda Streets and Stonehaven Avenue. These streets had been formed with the subdivision of
the Glen Iris Park Estate in 1890, but the depression years had meant that licle development had

occwred east of Darling Road.

The subdivision of the adjacent Electric Tramway Terminus Estate created Chaucer Swreet in 1922, and
by 1926, a varety of traders and storekszpers, including a boomnaker, ironmonger, esile agent,
butcher, milliner, grocer, produce merchants, draper, hairdresser, chemist. fruiterer and fuel mercharts
had established premises in Waverley Road."”” The proposed shops in Darling Road did not evenwate

excapt for those adjacent to the corner of Waverley Road.

The 1930s saw the number of Waverley Road shops increase to forty and this thriving shopping centre
catered o all the needs of the local area. Changes in shopping patterns, associated with the increasing
use of motor cars to trave! (o large shopping cenues, and the rapid growth of supermarkets, led to 2
gradual decline in local shopping strips. No longer having (o cater © te everyday needs of customers,

many traders moved out and businesses have taken over some of the former shop premises.

12 Sands & McDougall Directory, 1926.



DESCRIPTION

The Waverley Road shopping precinct is lecated immediately west of the intersection of Waverley and
Darling Roads in East Malvern. The arsa uncer considaration comprises approximately {0ty s5Cps

which occupy a busy, inner suburban site.

The shopping precinct is iocated at the intersecuon of two, busy arerial roads, with shops ciusterzd
around the terminus of the East Malvern wram line. This secton of Waverley Road is surfaced in
biumen with modern, concrete footpaths and kerbs aithough early, bluesione gutiers have besn retained
in some locations. With the exception of a handfu} of decorative shrubs, the shopping frontage is devoid
of landscaping and dense with roadside furniture such as poles for traffic lights, signage and lighting.

Power and telephone lines are located overhead.

The building stock exclusively comprises small recal outiets of one or two storeys. 1he majority 9{' the
buildings date from the period between the wars and geaerally develop the familiar theme of a red brick
building with a tiled, hipped roof concealed behind a rendered parapet. The group currently exists in 2
somewhat aitered state through modifications to the early built fabric and through the introduction of
new buildings to the group, most notably, nos 275 and 280-282 Waverley Road. However early features
dominate. Some buildings feature elaborately modelled parapets, (330-332, 268, 277-281 and 311
Waverley Road) or decoradve render (297-299 Waverley Road) while others are distinguished by
polychrome brickwork (293 Waverley Road). Unusually, many of the shops bave retained their recessed
entries and a small number have early metal shepfronts in place (287, 299 and 309 Waverley Road) or

pressed metal linings to their verandahs (272, 324, and 297-299 Waverley Road).

{llustration 2 Waverley Road, 1998.



ANALYSIS

The Waverley Road shopping precinct belongs (o the category of smaller suburban strip shopping
centres. These ocoupy a status between the corner shop development meeting the requirements of a few
contingent streets and the larger strip developments such as Lygon Sueet, Carlton, Clarendon Swes

South Melbourne, Smith Street, Collingwood, Chape! Street, Prahran and Gienferrie Road, Hawthom,
which service the needs of an entire district. Developments of this type are COmMmaon around suburban
Melbourne. Similar strips are found at Glen Eira Road,“Glen Eira, High Streer, Glen Iris and Busks
Road, Gardiner and Malvern. These precincts have a great deal in common with the Waverfey Road
group, particularly insofar as they are generally located at a transportation node and shace similar

architectural vocabularies.

The Waverley Road shopping precinct compares favourably with these other strips in terms of its
condition and integrity. Similar strips such as the Glen Iris Village or the Central Park group; are
similar in terms of age and usage, although pessibly more complete (o their interwar state and gernerally
better maintained. The building stock in the Waverley Road group is representative rather than
exceptional, being typical of suburban stdp developments between the wars. Some shops within the
precinct have retained original exterior treamments such as face brick, tiles or complete shopfronts, but
others have besn partially obscured or aliered, with additions in modern materials. Nonetheless, with
the exception of two new buildings, the original stock remains, and retains considerable potential for
restoration and gzeneral enhancement works. The bigh proportion of original and early shopfroats found
in the extant building stock enhances the interest of the area, and sets the precinct apart {rom most

comparabie siTips.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Waverley Road shopping centre is of regicnal significance as a representative, largely intact
commercial shopping precinct focussed on the end of 2 tram line. Its development is illusl:rativc of the
interdependence of public transport and suburban development as part of Melboume's develégﬁqent,
especially in the late Federation and interwar periods. The nexus between tram, shopping precinct and
dormitory suburb was clearly of significance to the development of surrounding area. The high
proportion of original and early shopfronts found in the extant building stock greatly enhances that

significance.
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APPENDIX 1 SCHEDULE OF BUILDINGS, DESCRIPTIONS AND
RECOMMENDED GRADINGS



WAVERLEY ROAD

Street No. Grading

South Side

Hughes Sireet

266 B
268 B
270 —
274 C
276 B
278 B
280-282 —
250 B
292 B
204 B
296 B
300 C

302 B
310-312 B
316 B
3138 B
320-322 B
324 B
328 B
330-332 B
334 B
336 B
338-340 B
Darling Road

Double storey interwar shop.

Single storey interwar shop.

Double storey temace.

Double storey interwar shop.

Single storey interwar shop.

Singie storey interwar shop.

Pair of single storey shops. ¢. 1970.
Single storey interwar service staton.
Double storey interwar shop.
Double storey interwar $hop.

Double storey interwar shop..

Double storey interwar shop. Modified.

Double storey interwar banking chambers.

Pair of double storey interwar shops.

Double storey interwar shop.

Double storey interwar shop.

Two storey interwar shop.

Single SLoréy interwar shop.

Single storey interwar shop.

Pair of double storey ineerwar shops.

Single storey interwar shop.

Single storey interwar shops. Parapet obscured.

Pair of single storey interwar shops.

10



WAYERLEY ROAD

Street No. Grading

North Side

Oak Grove

265A B Single storey interwar shop.

267-273 B Group of four single storey interwar shops.
275 — Double storey business premises. ¢. 1975.
277-281 B Group of thres single storey interwar shops.
Beech Streat

291 B Doubie storey late Federation/interwar shop.
293 B Single storey interwar shop.

295 B Double storey interwar shop.

297-299 B Pair of double storey interwar shops.

301 B Double storey interwar shop.

303-305 C Pair of single storey interwar shops. Parapet obscured.
307 B Single storey interwar shop.

309 B Double storey interwar shop.

311 B Single stocrey interwar shop.

313 B Single siorey interwar shop.

315 B Single storey interwar shop.

317 B Single storey interwar shop.

319 B Single storey interwar shop.

Dariin g Road
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